
 

AGENDA 

 

Port of Kennewick 

Regular Commission Business Meeting 
Port of Kennewick Commission Chambers 

350 Clover Island Drive, Suite 200, Kennewick, Washington 

 

Tuesday, January 26, 2016 

2:00 p.m. 

 

 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

III. PUBLIC COMMENT (Please state your name and address for the public record) 

 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Approval of Direct Deposit and ePayments Dated January 19, 2016 

B. Approval of Warrant Registers Dated January 26, 2016 

C. Approval of Regular Commission Business Meeting January 12, 2016 

 

V. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Bid Award:  Vista Field Development Building A (Bruker Remodel); Resolution 2016-03 

(AMBER) 

 

VI. REPORTS, COMMENTS AND DISCUSSION ITEMS 

A. Vista Field Update (LARRY) 

B. Arts Policy (TIM) 

C. TRIDEC Dues (TIM) 

D. Clover Island Boat Launch Update (LARRY) 

E. Columbia Drive Update (LARRY) 

F. Strategic Retreat (TIM)  

G. Commissioner Meetings (formal and informal meetings with groups or individuals) 

H. Non-Scheduled Items 

 

VII. PUBLIC COMMENT (Please state your name and address for the public record) 

 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

Action may be taken on any item on the Agenda. 

PLEASE SILENCE CELL PHONES 



REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
 

PORT OF KENNEWICK DRAFT     JANUARY 12, MINUTES 
   

Page 1 of 11 

 

CALL TO ORDER 
Commission President Don Barnes called the Regular Commission meeting to order at 2:01 p.m. in the 
Port of Kennewick Commission Chambers located at 350 Clover Island Drive, Suite 200, Kennewick, 
Washington 99336. 
 
The following were present: 
 
Board Members: Don Barnes, President 

Skip Novakovich, Vice-President 
Thomas Moak, Secretary   
  

Staff Members: Tim Arntzen, Chief Executive Officer 
 Tana Bader Inglima, Deputy CEO 
 Amber Hanchette, Director of Real Estate and Operations 
 Nick Kooiker, CFO/Auditor 
 Larry Peterson, Director of Planning and Development 
 Lisa Schumacher, Special Projects Coordinator 
 Bridgette Scott, Executive Assistant 
 Lucinda Luke, Port Counsel 
   

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 Mr. Chuck Eaton led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
OATH OF OFFICE 
Ms. Scott administered the oath of office to Commissioner Don Barnes.   
 
OLD BUSINESS 

A. Port Commission Rules of Policy and Procedure; Resolution 2016-01 
Ms. Luke stated, as previously discussed at the December 8, 2015 meeting, the Commission 
wished to implement rules and processes for the election of Commission Officers.  Before the 
Board is Resolution 2016-01 which revises section 6.1 “Officers” in the Port Commission Rules 
of Policy and Procedures.   The following additions have been made:  

6.1.1:  Terms. The terms of the office for each officer shall be two years or until his/her 
successor is elected: 

6.1.2: Election.  The officers shall be elected at the first regularly scheduled Port 
Commission meeting in January in the even years.  Newly elected officers shall 
take office effective the next regularly scheduled meeting following the election, 
unless otherwise agree by the Commission: 

6.1.3:  Special Elections:  By affirmative vote of 2/3 of the officers, a special election of 
officers may be held at any regularly scheduled Port Commission meeting. 

 
 Mr. Arntzen believes the revisions accurately depict the Commission’s requests.    

 
 



REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
 

PORT OF KENNEWICK     DRAFT JANUARY 12, 2016 MINUTES 
   

Page 2 of 11 

PUBLIC COMMENT  
Ed Frost, 609 West Albany Street, Kennewick.  Mr. Frost is concerned about section 6.13, Public 
Comment, which states public comments shall be received at the beginning and end of each meeting.    
Mr. Frost greatly appreciates Commissioner Barnes allowing the public to comment on action items and 
believes this is a step in right the direction for open government.  However, item 6.13 does not give the 
public the leeway for input on general comments or the opportunity to comment on action items.  
Furthermore, Mr. Frost believes the Commission meetings run long, considering size of the 
organization.  Mr. Frost hopes that once the Port Commission Rules and Procedures are adopted, the 
Commission and staff pay attention to section 6.12.3, which states a presentation should not last longer 
than 15 minutes.  Mr. Frost believes public participation in the governance of the Port is important, 
however, the public is not paid to attend the meetings.  Mr. Frost would appreciate it if the Commission 
keep presentations to 15 minutes. 
 
 Clerks Note: 

* Resolution 2014-04, approved on March 11, 2014:  Approval to amend the Port Commission 
Rules of Policy and Procedure to permit additional public comment for any item where a 
motion will be made; and to decrease the time limit from three minutes per speaker to two 
minutes per speaker, per item. 

 
No further comments were made. 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Novakovich moved for the approval of Resolution 2016-01 with the caveat 
that the Commission will examine other items within the Port Commission Rules of Policy and 
Procedures; Commissioner Moak seconded.  
 

Discussion:  
 
Mr. Novakovich stated he found a few inconsistences within the Policy and Procedures, but for 
today, the Commission is only looking at the process for the election of Commission Officers. 
 
Mr. Moak stated items have been changed which are not reflected in the Policy and Procedures 
and asked staff to research previous minutes that reflect formal policy changes.  Mr. Moak 
supports the additional language for the election of Commission Officers. 
 
Mr. Barnes stated the Commission can make changes to the Policy at any meeting and he 
appreciates Mr. Frost’s comments.  Mr. Barnes believes the changes to public comments 
(Resolution 2014-04) reflects the desire of the entire Commission and stated there are items the 
Commission can address at a later meeting.  At this time, the most relevant change is the election 
of Commission Officers; and he supports Resolution 2016-01.  
 

With no further discussion motion carried unanimously. All in favor 3:0.   
 
Mr. Arntzen stated Mr. Novakovich pointed out some inconsistencies within the policy and asked staff 
to review the policy and fix items that need to be corrected.   Mr. Arntzen stated if the Commission or 
public finds additional errors, please email Ms. Scott.    



REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
 

PORT OF KENNEWICK     DRAFT JANUARY 12, 2016 MINUTES 
   

Page 3 of 11 

2016 ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
Mr. Barnes clarified with Ms. Luke that in Roberts Rules of Order, officer nominations do not require a 
second. 
 
Ms. Luke confirmed that nominations do not require a second.   
 
Mr. Barnes inquired if the preference of the Commission is to elect one officer at a time or slate of 
officers. 
 
The consensus of the Board is to elect a slate of officers.   
 
Mr. Novakovich nominated the following officers, effective January 26, 2016 (Slate #1): 

• President: Mr. Novakovich; 
• Vice President: Mr. Moak; 
• Secretary:  Mr. Barnes. 

 
Mr. Moak nominated the following officers, effective January 26, 2016 (Slate #2): 

• President: Mr. Barnes; 
• Vice President: Mr. Novakovich; 
• Secretary:  Mr. Moak. 

  
With no other nominations, Mr. Barnes the closed nominations and asked for public comment.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENT  
No comments were made. 
 
Mr. Barnes reiterated the nominations and inquired if the Commission is comfortable with a voice vote.  
 
The consensus of the Board is to hold a voice vote.   
 
Mr. Barnes called for a vote on Slate #1. 

All in favor Slate #1:  3:0. Vote for Slate #1 is unanimous. 
 
Mr. Barnes called for a vote on Slate #2. 

All in favor Slate #2:  0:3 
 
Mr. Barnes stated it is a unanimous election and the following officers will serve for the next two years: 

• President: Mr. Novakovich; 
• Vice President: Mr. Moak; 
• Secretary:  Mr. Barnes. 

 
Mr. Arntzen stated Mr. Barnes has done a tremendous job as Port President and has led us through some 
challenging times and appreciates his ability to be a very good moderator, which is, the sentiment of 
staff. 



REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
 

PORT OF KENNEWICK     DRAFT JANUARY 12, 2016 MINUTES 
   

Page 4 of 11 

Mr. Novakovich echoed Mr. Arntzen’s comments on behalf of the Board. 
 
Mr. Barnes thanked Mr. Moak and Mr. Novakovich and appreciates their integrity and honesty and 
shared that he is honored to work for the Port of Kennewick.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENT  
No comments were made.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA   
Consent agenda consisted of the following: 

A. Approval of Direct Deposit and E-Payments Dated December 17, 2015 
Direct Deposit and E-Payments totaling $52,897.82 

B. Approval of Warrant Registers Dated December 22, 2015 
Expense Fund Voucher Numbers 37455 through 37517 for a grand total of $369,341.56 

C. Approval of Direct Deposit and E-Payments Dated December 31, 2015 
Direct Deposit and E-Payments totaling $57,118.160 

D. Approval of Warrant Registers Dated December 31, 2015 
Expense Fund Voucher Numbers 37518 through 37549 for a grand total of $272,772.62 

E. Approval of Warrant Registers Dated January 12, 2016 
Expense Fund Voucher Numbers 37518 through 37549 for a grand total of $72,907.30 

F. Approval of Commission Meeting Minutes Dated December 8, 2015 
G. Approval of Emergency Bid: Repair of “C” Dock Sprinkler System; Resolution 2016-02 

 
MOTION:  Commissioner Novakovich moved for approval of the Consent Agenda, as presented; 
Commissioner Moak seconded.  With no further discussion, motion carried unanimously. All in favor 
3:0.   
 
REPORTS, COMMENTS AND DISCUSSION ITEMS 

A. Tri-Cities Legislative Council Trip, January 28-29, 2016 
Mr. Arntzen stated, as previously discussed at the December 8, 2015 meeting, the Tri-Cities 
Legislative Council Trip is scheduled for January 28-29, 2016.   
It is the consensus of the Commission that the Port will not attend the Tri-Cities Legislative 
Council Trip.   
 

B. Columbia Drive Update 
Mr. Peterson reported the Wine Village Phase I, went out for bid on December 14, 2015.  On 
January 5, 2016, the Port held a pre-bid meeting and approximately 26 contractors were in 
attendance.  Mr. Peterson stated the Wine Village is unique due to the new construction method 
that is being used and the project has generated a lot interest in the construction community.  Mr. 
Peterson stated bids for the Wine Village are due on February 4, 2016 at 10:00 a.m. The results 
will be presented to the Commission on February 9, 2016, for possible consideration and 
approval.   
  



REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
 

PORT OF KENNEWICK     DRAFT JANUARY 12, 2016 MINUTES 
   

Page 5 of 11 

 Mr. Moak stated he has had many inquiries about when the project at Columbia Drive will 
begin.  This is great progress for Columbia Drive and the Port signage is first rate.  The Wine 
Village will benefit downtown Kennewick, the waterfront development and our community.    
 
Mr. Novakovich stated he has had heard comments from Walla Walla community members as 
well. 
 
Mr. Peterson stated the Wine Village Phase I bid includes three winery buildings, the 
undergrounding of 850 feet of utilities, key infrastructure and preparation of the remaining five 
acres for development.   
 

C. Vista Field 
Mr. Peterson reported the Vista Field Transportation Impact Evaluation Analysis (TSIE) has 
been submitted to the City of Kennewick for review.  The City initially scheduled a review of the 
TSIE for January 12, 2016, however, the meeting has been rescheduled to allow all members of 
City Council to be present.  Mr. Peterson stated the meeting has been rescheduled for February 9, 
2016, and he, city staff, and Mr. Robison of Strategic Management will speak on behalf of the 
Port.  The extension allows the City the opportunity to further review the study in prior to 
sharing it with Council. The mixed-use zoning regulations for Vista Field are moving forward 
and will be utilized for the Bridge to Bridge area as well.   
 
1. Arts Center Task Force 

Mr. Arntzen updated the Commission on the status of the Arts Center Task Force and at this 
time, the Port is looking to identify a parcel of land, which is mutually acceptable for the 
stage I facility.  Mr. Arntzen met with Mr. Wiley, chairman of the Arts Center Task Force in 
December and provided Mr. Wiley with drafts of the following for legal review: letter of 
intent, formal expression of interest, and a draft Purchase and Sale Agreement (PSA), which 
outlines the terms of the land transfer.  The transaction is difficult to define, therefore the 
Port Commission has included conditions to safeguard both entities.  The next step is for the 
Arts Center Task Force, a Port representative, and legal counsel to meet to discuss the 
mechanics and path forward. 
 
Mr. Moak inquired if Mr. Arntzen has spoken with Mr. Wiley and asked how long it might 
be before the Port moves forward.   
 
Mr. Arntzen believes the process is moving forward but it will take time to implement.  At 
this time, neither entity has a deadline, however, the Arts Center Task Force does need to 
have a piece of property identified to begin fundraising.  This is a complex transaction and 
while the Port does not have a parcel identified in Phase I, staff has been working with 
Duany Plater-Zyberk (DPZ) to identify a location.  Mr. Arntzen does not anticipate any 
issues with the land transfer and believes the Port has a solid foundation to work with.   
 
Mr. Moak inquired if the parcel needs to be identified and the Phase I infrastructure 
determined prior to executing the document. 
 



REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
 

PORT OF KENNEWICK     DRAFT JANUARY 12, 2016 MINUTES 
   

Page 6 of 11 

  
Mr. Peterson stated yes, both parties will need to know specific details of the parcel which 
will include the infrastructure and utilities.   
 
Mr. Barnes confirmed that post-closing there will be conditions placed on the transaction, 
such as construction time frame. 
 
Mr. Arntzen confirmed there will be public safeguards in the contract and stated if there is a 
transaction where the Port is going to transfer land to the Arts Center Task Force, certain 
stipulations will be made to safeguard the Port and taxpayers.  This is a project of first 
impression and the Arts Center Task Force will need to raise at least $18,000,000 and it is 
Mr. Arntzen’s understanding that the Commission would like to allow for some flexibility.   
The project is a very ambitious undertaking for both entities and the community would like 
to see the project come to fruition.  Mr. Arntzen believes there will be many meetings 
between now and the construction process, and if the project is done correctly, the taxpayers 
will see the added value to surrounding properties.  Mr. Arntzen stated in substantial 
developments, there is one anchor that stimulates the entire project.  
 

2. Expression of Interest 
Mr. Arntzen stated during the December 8, 2015 meeting, the Commission viewed an early 
draft of the Expression of Interest.  The Expression of Interest is a document that is intended 
to act as an advertisement that Port property at Vista Field is ready for development.  
Furthermore, the Expression of Interest outlines the method of communication between the 
developer and Port beginning with a letter of intent.  Once the Port receives a letter of intent 
from a developer, it will be evaluated and sent to the town architects, Mr. Mehaffy and Mr. 
Qamar for review.  Mr. Mehaffy and Mr. Qamar will then work with the developer on a 
proposal which includes concepts and details for Vista Field for Commission review.    Mr. 
Arntzen stated the document is a work in progress and he has been revising the document 
with Ms. Luke and Mr. Mehaffy to make it less complex while including Port provisions.  
Mr. Arntzen would like to continue revising the document and bring back at a later date for 
Commission discussion.   Mr. Arntzen stated this is a document that the Port needs to have in 
place once Phase I infrastructure is completed.   
 
Mr. Arntzen stated it has been mentioned throughout the planning process that there will be 
an opportunity for a private individual to purchase a residential lot in Vista Field.  Mr. 
Arntzen stated the Rosemary Beach development in Florida was able to sell lots with certain 
design standards, covenants, conditions and restrictions (CCR) in place, which was beneficial 
to the entire development.  Mr. Arntzen conveyed there are some legal prohibitions about 
ports entering into the residential market, however, the Port has the ability to sell larger 
residential components as part of the Master Plan. Furthermore, the Port staff is small and 
Mr. Arntzen does not believe that staff should act as the realtor office to sell lots to an 
individual buyer.  Mr. Arntzen asked for Commission direction regarding the sale of private 
residential lots or perhaps selling a 5-10 acre parcel to a real estate developer, with the 
stipulation to subdivide the lot and market to private individuals.   
 



REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
 

PORT OF KENNEWICK     DRAFT JANUARY 12, 2016 MINUTES 
   

Page 7 of 11 

Mr. Moak stated it would be helpful to get a better understanding of the Port’s legal options 
going forward. 
 
Mr. Arntzen stated Ms. Luke will help staff research the legalities, unless the Commission 
sees an issue with the Port selling individual lots.   
 
Mr. Novakovich stated the Port has many big projects in the works, and strongly believes 
there is a better use of staff time than selling individual lots.    
 
Mr. Peterson stated residential lots have been discussed since the Charrette, however, after 
discussion with legal counsel, maybe the Port should look at other options to ensure 
residential sales at Vista Field.  Mr. Peterson stated allowing the individual buyer to build at 
Vista Field is beneficial, however, CCR’s and design stipulations in accordance to the Port’s 
master plan will need to be in place. 
 
Mr. Barnes would like staff to explore a residential development agreement for the 
residential customer.  Mr. Barnes stated we need to be mindful of the use and commitment of 
Port personnel resources and does not believe the Port should be in the business of handling 
individual residential real estate transactions.  If the Port is able to find a residential 
developer who will be able to sell to the private individual, Vista Field will be a richer, 
diversified development, however, it is important that CCR’s are in place.    
 
Mr. Arntzen will have Ms. Luke research the legalities, acting on the premise that Port staff 
will not act as the selling agent. 
 
Mr. Novakovich clarified that he is not opposed to selling individual residential lots, however 
he does not want to see Port staff acting as the selling agent.  
 
The consensus of the Board is for Ms. Luke to research port laws regarding residential lots, 
with the premise that the Port will not act as the selling agent to private individuals.  
 

3. 2016 Path Forward (Master Plan/Developer’s Agreement; Financing Plan; Phase I 
Infrastructure Plan)   
Mr. Arntzen stated 2015 was the year the Port captured ideas to create a draft Master Plan for 
Vista Field and as Mr. Peterson reported, the TSIE will be presented to City Council on 
February 9, 2016.  Once the City has reviewed the TSIE, staff and DPZ will be able to make 
necessary corrections and/or changes to the Master Plan and submit them to the City for 
review in March.  Mr. Arntzen stated it is important to be diligent and he would like to meet 
with the City regarding a Developer’s Agreement, which locks in developer’s fees, allocates 
a time period, generally 10-20 years for the master plan, and safeguards the continuation of 
the development.  Mr. Arntzen stated if the Master Plan and Developer’s Agreement are in 
place by spring that it will be a very substantial development for Vista Field and our 
Community.  
 
 



REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
 

PORT OF KENNEWICK     DRAFT JANUARY 12, 2016 MINUTES 
   

Page 8 of 11 

Mr. Arntzen stated the following will need to be completed in 2016: 
• Master Plan and Developer’s Agreement approved by the City;  
• Phase I Infrastructure Plan;  
• Performing Arts Center site established; 
• Refine financing plan.  

 
Mr. Arntzen stated although the Commission previously discussed a $5,000,000 financing 
plan for Phase I, he would like to refine the scope to a $3,000,000 financing plan which 
might include: general arterials and narrow streets, parcels for development and an open 
space in preparation for Phase II green space.  Mr. Arntzen stated a $3,000,000 plan is 
feasible for completing Phase I infrastructure without incurring debt.   
 
Mr. Kooiker stated as Vista Field moves forward, the discussion of where the funds will 
come from and what resources can be used will be narrowed down.  The Port carries no debt 
and would like to fund Phase I with cash on hand, however, if that is not plausible, we will 
look at other options such as a bridge loan.    
 
Mr. Arntzen believes real estate sales will fund approximately 50% of Phase I. 
 
Mr. Moak inquired if Mr. Arntzen anticipates work to be completed in by the end of second 
quarter in 2016. 
 
Mr. Arntzen hopes to have Phase I infrastructure plan in place before June. 
 
Mr. Peterson believes June of 2016 is a feasible timeframe and hopes that by this time next 
year, the Port will be able to break ground on the first phase of infrastructure and road 
development.       
 
Mr. Novakovich inquired how much land will be used in Phase I.    
 
Mr. Peterson stated Phase I will be approximately 27-30 acres (1/3 of site).   
 
Mr. Barnes inquired if the draft Charrette report was still available on the Port website.  
Furthermore, Mr. Barnes asked if roundabouts will be included in the Phase I infrastructure 
plan. 
 
Mr. Peterson stated a roundabout may be included at the curve on West Deschutes next to the 
hangars.  Mr. Peterson reported all documents are readily available at 
www.portofkennewick.org and the email vistafield@portofkennewick.org is still open for 
comments.   
 
Mr. Arntzen stated it is important to remember that the Port will have an unfunded Phase I 
infrastructure plan and the policy question for the Commission to consider is what sources 
and funds should be utilized to fund Phase I.  It has been discussed that the Commission 
would like to follow a lean development plan however, the dilemma may be the public 

http://www.portofkennewick.org/
mailto:vistafield@portofkennewick.org


REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
 

PORT OF KENNEWICK     DRAFT JANUARY 12, 2016 MINUTES 
   

Page 9 of 11 

asking when construction will begin.  Mr. Arntzen stated the City has suggested applying for 
a Local Revitalization Fund (LRF) however, is not statutorily permitted at this time and may 
not materialize.    
 
Mr. Moak inquired we are actively marketing Port properties for sale with the purpose of 
accumulating funds for major projects. 
 
Mr. Arntzen stated we are not actively marketing the Southridge property, but we are 
marketing the Verizon property near Deschutes.  The Verizon property is currently being 
appraised and Ms. Bader Inglima is working on signage which will advertise the Vista Field 
vision.  It was discussed that the Port hold the Southridge property with the expectation that 
the property value will increase, however, the Commission can instruct staff to market 
Southridge. 
 
Mr. Moak confirmed that the sale of the Southridge property was included in the initial 
financing plan for $5,000,000. 
 
Mr. Arntzen stated Mr. Moak is correct.  Mr. Arntzen anticipates bringing a formal financing 
plan with Phase I infrastructure reflecting the changes discussed today.  Mr. Arntzen believes 
a $3,000,000 financing plan is more realistic and gives the Port a greater opportunity to start 
developing the property. 
 
Mr. Moak asked if the Verizon property was outside the Vista Field Master Plan are and if 
so, what is the specific zoning for the property. 
 
Mr. Peterson stated the Verizon property is made up of two parcels, which are outside the 
Master Plan.  The front parcel, which faces Deschutes, is approximately 6 ½ acres and is 
zoned for business park, which must comply with City’s commercial design standards.  The 
remaining parcel in the back is zoned for industrial.  
 

D. Commissioner Meetings (formal and informal meetings with groups or individuals) 
Commissioners reported on their respective committee meetings. 
 

E. Non Scheduled Items 
1. Mr. Peterson stated construction has begun on the Northwest Orthopedics medical building 

in Spaulding Business Park.  
 

2. Ms. Bader Inglima has been asked to prepare a letter of support for Richland Council 
Member, Phil Lemley, for his application for position on the Washington Building Code 
Council.  The application is being made through the Association of Washington Cities.  Ms. 
Bader Inglima drafted a letter of support on behalf of the Port for Mr. Lemley.   

 
3. Mr. Peterson stated Resolution 2015-30, which was approved on December 8, 2015, for 

construction of the inwater boat ramp work was awarded to Big D’s Construction.  Removal 
of the existing boat ramp launch panels and demolition has been completed.  Furthermore, 



REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
 

PORT OF KENNEWICK     DRAFT JANUARY 12, 2016 MINUTES 
   

Page 10 of 11 

material has been placed and Big D’s is ready to install the prefabricated frames and concrete 
panels. Mr. Peterson stated staff worked with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers to lower the 
water level Tuesday through Thursday to aid construction.   

 
4. Ms. Hanchette reported the 415 North Quay (Bruker) building rehabilitation project, went out 

for bid on December 14, 2015.  The project is running parallel with the Wine Village and 
there has been a lot of interest in the project.  The mandatory walk-thru was held on the same 
day as the Wine Village pre-bid conference and approximately 12 contractors showed up. 
The bid opening is scheduled for Wednesday, January 21, 2016 at 2:00 p.m. and will be 
brought to the Commission for consideration on January 26, 2016. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
No comments were made. 
   
COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
No comments were made. 
 
Mr. Barnes anticipates the Executive Session will last approximately 40 minutes, for Real Estate (Site 
Selection), per RCW 42.30.110(1)(b) and Real Estate (Minimum Price) per RCW 42.30.110(1)(c) with 
no action anticipated.  Mr. Barnes asked the public to notify Port staff if they will return after the 
executive session.   
 
Mr. Barnes recessed the Regular Commission Meeting at 3:30 p.m. for approximately eight minutes. 
 
 EXECUTIVE SESSION   

A. Real Estate (Site Selection), per RCW 42.30.110(1)(b)   
B. Real Estate (Minimum Price), per RCW 42.30.110(1)(c) 

 
Mr. Barnes convened the meeting into Executive Session at 3:40 p.m. for approximately 40 minutes. 
 
Ms. Scott exited the meeting at 4:20 to extend the Executive Session for 10 minutes. 
 
Mr. Barnes adjourned the Executive Session at 4:28 p.m.   
 
Mr. Barnes reconvened Regular Commission Meeting at 4:29 p.m.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
With no further business to bring before the Board; the meeting was adjourned at 4:29 p.m.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
 

PORT OF KENNEWICK     DRAFT JANUARY 12, 2016 MINUTES 
   

Page 11 of 11 

 
APPROVED: PORT of KENNEWICK 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 
  

      
Don Barnes, President 
 

       
Skip Novakovich, Vice President 
 

 
 

      

 Thomas Moak, Secretary 

 



 

 
 

          
 AGENDA REPORT  

 
 

TO:  Port Commission 
  
FROM:    Amber Hanchette, Director of Real Estate & Operations 
     
MEETING DATE:    January 26, 2016 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Resolution 2016-03; Construction Contract with Banlin Construction, 

LLC 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
I. REFERENCE(S):  Resolution 2016-03;   Bid Tabulation 

 
II. FISCAL IMPACT:  $522,079.00, plus applicable tax 

 
III. DISCUSSION:  The Port constructed the Vista Field Development Facility #A (29,500 sq. ft.) in 

1990 to provide opportunities for business to start and grow within the Port district.  Following 
over 25 years of continued occupancy, plans were prepared to rehabilitate approximately 23,500 
square feet of the building.  Invitations to bid were published in the Tri-City Herald and 
specifications were made available at the Tri-City Constriction Council plan centers and other 
regional plan centers, on the Port’s website and to all contractors who requested such plans and 
specifications.  The bid submittal deadline was 2:00 p.m. January 20, 2016.   
 

• Banlin Construction LLC’s base bid of $470,087.00 was the lowest of nine [9] bids received 
for this project and has been deemed as a responsive bid.   

• Banlin Construction LLC’s Alternative #1 bid of $13,033.00 was the lowest of nine [9] bids 
received for this project and has been deemed as a responsive bid. 

• Banlin Construction LLC’s Alternative #2 bid of $38,959.00 was the sixth lowest of the nine 
[9] bids received for this project and has been deemed as a responsive bid.    
 

• Bid documents specified the Port would award to the contractor which best serves the Port’s 
purposes and when combined the bids from Banlin Construction LLC for the Base Bid and 
Alternative Bids #1 and #2 are a cumulative total of $522,079.00 which is the lowest of nine 
[9] bids received for this project.    

 
Review and acceptance of this bid by the Commission is required prior to proceeding with this 
project.  The motion included in this report and the attached resolution would effectively authorize 
this project.  

 
V. ACTION REQUESTED OF COMMISSION:   

Motion: I move approval of Resolution 2016-03, authorizing the Port’s Executive 
Director to execute the contract with Banlin Construction LLC for the rehabilitation 
of Vista Field Development Facility #A project including Alternatives #1 & #2, for 
the sum of $522,079.00, plus applicable tax. 



PORT OF KENNEWICK 
 

Resolution No. 2016-03 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PORT OF KENNEWICK BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
ACCEPTING AND AWARDING A BUILDING CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR THE VISTA 

FIELD DEVELOPMENT FACILITY #A REHABILITATION  
 

WHEREAS, a request for bids for the rehabilitation of Vista Field Development Facility 
#A was properly advertised with the approved plans and specifications being made available to 
prospective bidders, and 
  

WHEREAS, construction bids have been received and staff and the project architect 
have certified that the bids received are in compliance with the plans and specifications; and 

 
WHEREAS, the staff and the project architect have certified that the low bidder for the 

project is Banlin Construction, LLC in the amount of $470,087.00, plus applicable tax for the 
base bid work which includes rehabilitation of approximately 23,500 square feet of Vista Field 
Development Facility #A and that such bid is in compliance with the plans and specifications; 
and 
  

WHEREAS, the staff and the project architect have certified that the low bidder also 
provided a bid in the amount of $13,033.00, plus applicable tax for Bid Alternative #1 work 
which includes replacement of existing flush exterior hollow metal doors with new full glass 
doors, and that such bid is in compliance with the plans and specifications; and 

 
WHEREAS, the staff and the project architect have certified that the low bidder also 

provided a bid in the amount of $38,959.00, plus applicable tax for Bid Alternative #2 work 
which includes installation of a building fire alarm system, and that such bid is in compliance 
with the plans and specifications; and 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Port of Kennewick Commission 

does hereby accept the base bid of Banlin Construction, LLC for the rehabilitation of 
approximately 23,500 square feet of space at Vista Field Development Facility #A as the low 
bidder in the amount of $470,087.00, plus applicable tax and hereby awards the construction 
contract to said low bidder. 

 
BE IT HEREBY FURTHER RESOLVED that the Port of Kennewick Commission 

does hereby accept the Bid Alternative #1 of Banlin Construction, LLC for the rehabilitation of 
Vista Field Development Facility #A in the amount of $13,033.00 plus applicable tax, and Bid 
Alternative #2 of Banlin Construction, LLC in the amount of $38,959.00 plus applicable tax and 
hereby increases the construction with said low bidder to include this work. 



 
BE IT HEREBY FURTHER RESOLVED that the Executive Director is authorized to 

enter into a contract between the Port of Kennewick and Banlin Construction, LLC for 
$522,079.00 plus applicable tax for the rehabilitation of approximately 23,500 square feet at 
Vista Field Development Facility #A and that the Executive Director is further authorized to 
proceed with all necessary procedures required to complete construction of the project. 

 
ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of Port of Kennewick on the 26th day of 

January 2016. 
 
 PORT of KENNEWICK 
 BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
       By:  _____________________________ 
        SKIP NOVAKOVICH, President  
 

            
       By:   _____________________________ 
        THOMAS MOAK, Vice President 
 
 
       By: _____________________________ 
        DON BARNES, Secretary  










	01-26-2016 Agenda Official
	01-26-2016 Preliminary Agenda Packet
	CALL TO ORDER




